prs&ASSDCIATES —

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PS TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PS Toll Road Private Limited

("the Company”}], which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31¢ March, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the Standatone Financial Statements

2.

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Fi nancial statements

based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements arc free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
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statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as cvaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

2. We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Opinion
6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31% March, 2017, and its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date,

Other Matter

7. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and

the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 inluded in these standalone Ind
AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which were audited by us, on which we
expressed an unmodified opinion vide our report dated May 14, 2016 and May 18,
2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the company in transition to Ind AS have been audited by
us.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

B.

As required by the Companics (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of sectinn 143 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in
Annexure - "A"a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and ohtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from ouegxamination of those books
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c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Reportare in agreement with the books of account

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31= March,
2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualificd as on
31* March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) uf the Act.

E With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we Bive our separate report
in "Annexure - B".

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have 2 material
impact its financial position-

ii) Based upon the assessment made by the company, there are no material foreseeable
losses on its long term contracts that may require any provisioning

fii} In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit the reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

iv) The company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying
on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in
accordance with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced
to us by the Management - Refer Note 37

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

/ _#€ANarendra Khandal
"~ Pdrtner
No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to the members of PS Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 3 1,2017

i) (a) The companyis maintaining proper records showing full particulars, with respect to its
fixed assets comprising of Inta ngible Assets and Intangible asscts under development.

(b) The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. [n
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(€} According to the information and explanations provided to us, therc are no immovahle
properties included in the fixed asscts of the company and acvordingly the reporting
requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

ii)  In our opinion, and avcording to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities and therefore does
not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (ii) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

iii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a). (b) and
{c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iv]  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thercunder are not applicable.

vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records
and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made 2 detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, du Ly of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in
India,

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,



(k) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no applicable
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information and

company does not have any borrowings from government.

ix}  In our opinlon and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
taken by the company have been ult mately utilised for the purpose for which they were
taken,

%) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpaose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given to us by
the management, we report that we have neither come ACross any instance of fraud by the
company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management,

xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (xi] of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xii)  The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, al] transactions entered into by
the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 178 of the Act
where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards,

xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit.

xv)  As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them,

xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not required to be registered under Section 45 — IA of the Reserve Rank of India, 1934,

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E —

\ Narendra Khandal
ariner
“ M No. 065025
Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, to the members of PS Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 3 1,2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PS Toll Road Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
slatements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note"} and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgecment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Or Brror,

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
fur our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as hecessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made unly in accordanve with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
cffect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or im proper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

/‘ Narendra Khandal
S
tner
No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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PS TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended March 31, 2017
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PS5 Toll Read Private Limited

Balance Sheet
T Milllans
: As at As at —I- As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
ASSETS
Mon-currant assels
(&} intangible assets 4 2547003 9.810.55 10,1040 .85
(b} Intangible assets unideor developmeant 4 6,712 80 23.168.14 16,825 64
(e} Cither non - current assots B 543 G0 373.22 1,504 53
Current assots
(&) Fnancial Asseis
(I} Cash and cash aquivalents fia 126.36 17,18 G1.a2
tili) Bank balances othor than (I} aboie Sk 5 23.87
vy CHher financial asscl 5r 160 .25 &d.63 He 44
{b) Cumend Tex Asses {Med) 48.80 15.51 18,74
() Other current assefs ¥ 108.08 133,88 | 249 64
Total Assets = 38,307.43 '; 34.111.13f 25,926,786
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES |
EQUITY
ta) Equity shere capital 8 0.1t 011 0.14
 (h) Subordinated debi (i natura of Eguily) ga 10,785.11 B285.11 7607 81
{c) Other aquity k ] - 4.470.52 cin 481067 3.581.M
Total Equity 15.256.13 12,895.88 11,198,02
LIABILITIES
Mon-current lNabilities
(1) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 10a 6.711.69 B.571.41 3B26.49
(i} Cher financial liahilities 12k 11,857.21 11 Bo8. 00 11,549,905
(5) Provisions 13b 11.46 6.a5 4.51
(o] Deferred tax llabilities [MNet) 27c 1.227.63 1,403.43 1,156.07
Current liabilities
{8} Financial Ligbilitias
(1) Borrowings 100 20.00 - -
(i) Trade payables 11 381.70 257 .85 194 82
{itiy Other financial liabilities 12a 729.85 1,069.90 1,187.94
bk Crther cumanl iabiliies 14 B.57 e ind 6.&2
(23 Provisions 13a 4.89 0.29 0.18
Total Equity and Liabilities 36,307.43 3417118 28,926.76

The ACCOMpanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmtaion {nates) are an Integral part of the

Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheel refarrad 1on our repart of even date
For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Regn No.  302014F

“—"Nargndra Khandal
Mner
mibership No. - DB5025

Chala ; 141k Aprd 2017
Flaca - Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Baar_d

Kaushilk Pal

Directar

DIN:05237230
Date - 14th Apnil 2017
Flace : Mumbei

uﬁ‘ﬂ,l n

Directar
Din:0r s

o

-,
ivani

7
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P3 Toll Road Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss |

T Millions
. Year ended ' Year ended

Particulars Note March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operations 15 4,240.31 6,231.05
Cther Incoms 16 5.88 8.27
Total Income : 424719 6.237.32
Expenses

Toll Operation and Maintainence EXpENSas b7 22723 2649 85

Construction cost 201478 4028749

Employee benefits expense 18 B5.28 64.40

Finance costs 15 1,107.38 23.32

Amortization expensc 4 985.09 290.40

Other expensas 20 138.55 177.43
Total expenses N 4559.30 ] 4,852.20
Profit / (loss) before tax F (31241) 1,385.12

|

Tax expense

Current tax . | 117.50

Deferred tax chargei( credit} {17461 | 247.88
Profit/{Loss) for the period {137.50) 1,019.74

Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined (3.45) (1.50)

(i} Income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (1.19) (0.52)
Other Comprehensive Incomei(Loss) for the year {2.26) {0.98)
Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year — (139.75) | 1,018.76
Earnings per equity share of "10 each

Basic & Diluted 3z (12,821.34) | 895,0849.64

The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informtaion (notes) are an integral
part of the Financial Statements
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates ' For and on behalf of the Board
Charterad Accountants
Firm Regn, N 302014F

#

—

Naréndra Khandal Kaushik Pal
riner Director
Membership No. : 085025 DIN:05237230
Date © 14th April 2017 Date ; 14th April 2017

Place - Mumbai Place : Mumbai
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P3 Toll Road Private Limited

Cash flow Statement
7 Millions
Particul Year ended T Voar onded
i March 31,2047 | March 34, 2016
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: |
Profit before tax 1312.11}) 1,383.62
Adiurstments for.
Amartization expenses 985.008 | 29040

Irilerest intome (.47 (39403
Ltwidurud income - 3
Net (gain)/ioss on sale of investments 5
Interest axpanze 1,107.26 23,32
Mark-ic-market (gainiioas oo derivathve financial msbments

1,774,688 1,5693.44

Cash Genorated from Operstions bofore
warking capital changes
Adiuziments for: i
(Incieaselidecrsass in financial asaets excapt for investments {102.56) [28.2G)
(Increasc] docroase In other carrent assets 25 a0 15 T&
Increéasa’(dacraas:] m frade pavables 17385 a3 na
Incieaseiidecreasa) in ot Fnancial [lzkilities 5.4k 10.54
Increasci{deorease) In provisions 5.6G 2.55
Increasel{deciease) in olher curment liakilitios - (0.80) .58
5741 18447
Cash generated from operations 1,832.30 1.857.61
Taxes (paid) net of refunds (33.39) {113.28)
Het cash gencraled from operating activities - [A] 1,798.81 1,744.35
E CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchasefsale proceeds of infangitle assets (including mlangible (3,501 .68) | (4,724 58)
assest under development)
Purchase of currenl investmenis [net of proceeds) - I -
Interest received 547 300
Mot cash (used in} / generated from investing activitles - [B] (349827 | (4,721 .06)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Izswa of equidy Shares & <
Procaeds from Sub-debt 2,500,00 677.20
Proceeds from Imer-corporate deposits (short ferm borrowings) 4 L
Proczeds from long term borrowings 287370 3433 90
Repayment of lang term borrowings 12,500.00) (=00, 00]
Interes paxd (TRA 21) (679.03)
Net cash used in financing activities - [C] 1,788.48 253207
Met increasel{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C) o1 1% {44 54}
Add: Cash and cash equlvalents at tha beginning of the year 17.14 61.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 128,38 1718
Components of Cash and cash equivalants
Halances with banks - in Current accoents 57.86 B.01
Depasits with maturity of fess than three manths 80.00 -
Cash on hand 1070 1118
Tatal Cash and cash equivalonts 120.36 | 17.18

Mate: The sbove  Statemant of Cash Flows has been prepared undar the ‘indivect Method' as sef oulin Ind 45 T 'Smmm;nju of Cash Flaws'
The accempanying surmmary of significant accounting palisies and ather explanatary informtzion {notes) me an intagral parf of thee Financial
Slalements

This is fhe cash How statemoent referrad to in ain wport of even date

For MKPS & Associates For and on behall of the Board

Chartered Acocountants
Firm Rege Nu. 302074€ -

= ——
"-—-"j(arendm Khandal Kaushik Pal Madan Biyani
A Partnar Directar Direcior
Mambership Mo, @ DESORS DIMN:05237 230 D071 3037
Cate  14ih April 2017 Date ; 14th Apnl 2017 L

Place - Mumbai Piace ; Mumbai
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P3 Toll Road Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (

T Millions
Balance at the Changes in equity | Balance at the end |
Particulars Notes beginning of the |share capital during | of the year
. _year the vear
As at 1st April, 2015 011 - | 0.11
Az at 31st March 2016 g 0.14 - 0.11
As at 31st March 2017 2.1 - 011
|
T Milllons
B. OTHER EQUITY
Equity Component Reserves and
" of compoud Surplus |
Particulars Mote : financial Rafained Eamnings Total
instruments Note 9c)
{note 9h) Ll
Balance at April 01, 2015 106,10 3,486.81 4,591.91
Frafit far the vaar 1.018.74 1,019.74
Other comprehensive income for the year = {0.98) (0.98)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,018.76 | 1.018.76
Transaction with owners in thelr capacity as |
owners ;
lssue of equity shares | -
Dividend Paijd | -
Balance at 31st March 2018 105.10 4,505.57 | 4,610.67
Balance at April 01, 2016 105.10 4,505.57 4,610.67
Profit for the year {137.50) (137.50)
Other comprehensive income for the year {2 26) {2.26)
Total comprehensive income for the year | - {139.75) {139.75)]
Transaction with ownoers in their capacity as
owners :
Issue of equity shares -
Dividend Paid =
Balance at 31st March, 2017 105,10 4,365.82 4,470.92

As per our reporl of even date attached
For M K P 5 & Associatos

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. N, 302014E

Z‘/ rendra Khandal Kaushik Pal I"-"'I';dan iylﬁlpﬂd:

artner ' Director / Director
“ Membership No. . 085025 DIN:05237230 f DIN:0713371
Date : 14th Apnl 2017 Date . 14th April 2,;,1#3

Place . Mumhai Place | Mumbai \
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PS5 Toll Road Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements I

Note 1: Corporate information '

The Company has been awarded on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis, augmantation
of the existing road from-km 725.00 io km B65.35 (approximately 140,35 km) en the Pune-Satara section of
Mational Highway No.d in lhe state of Maharashira and operation and maintenance of the existing 4 lanes and
sddilienal ? lancs as per the Concessian Agreement daled March 10, 2010 of the National Highways Authority of
India. The Conecession Agraement g for 3 year of 24 years from October 01, 2010, being the appointad Date
sleled in clause 1.1 of the said agreement. The company is 3 subsidiary of Reliance Infrastructure Limited, Toll
Collection Started from Qctober 1.2010

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statementz of |he Company comprises of Balance Shest, Statement of Prafit and Losg,
Cash Flow Staternent, Statement of Changes in Equity, a summary of significant scoounting policies,
noles and other explanatory information. i [ ;

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Ingian Accounting Starn:!ards! find AS)
notified under Section 133 of (he Companies Act, 2013 itha Act) [Companies (Indian coounting
Slandards) Rules, 201 5] and other relevant provisions of the Acl, These Financial Staternents Rava been
prepared in accordance with the requiremenls of the information and disclasures mandated bylschadule
Il of the Act, applicable Ind AS, olher applicable prancuncements and regulations, These | Finangal
Stalements are he first Financial Statements of the Company under Ind AS The Financial Statements up
to year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards nntigud under
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 {as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

Thesa Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
liabilities which have heen Measured at fair value. For tha purpose of preparation of these Financial
Statermnents, the transition date to |nd AS Is considered as April 1. 2015

These Financial Statemeénts are presented in ¥ Millions, excapt where otherwise indicated,
Accounting standards issued but not yet effectiva

Ind AZ 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ have been published by Ministry of Corparate Affairs
{MCA) but are not vet effactive. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for reporting useful information to users
of the financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncerainty of reverve and cash flows

Note 2: Summary of Significant accounting policies
3.1 Current versus non-current classification f

The Company presents assats and liabilities in the balanee sheet based on cument/ nlnn-curreni
claszification

An asset is reated as current when if is:
*  Etxpected to be'realisad or intended to be sold or consumed in normafl operating cycle
*  Expecled to be realised within twalve months after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from baing exchanged or used to sellle g liability for st least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assels are classified A% non-current,
A lizhility is currant when;

* ltis expacted to be settled in normal operating cycle

* s dus to be settled within twelve mionths after the reporting period, or

*  There iz no unconditional right to defer the settement of tha lizkility for at loast fwelve mur'Ths after
the reporting period

All olher liabilities are classified as non-current
Deferrod lax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current a2eets and liahilitios,

The operating cycle is the lime between the acquisition of assels for processing and their realization in
cash and cash squivalents. The Company has identified twelve manths as it aperating cycle,
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3.2 Foreign currencies

33

Functional and presentation currency

ems included in the F inancial Staterments of the Cempany are measured using the n::urrehc].r of the
pnmary economic environment in which the entily operates (‘the functional currency’). The Financial
Statemants are presanted |n Indian Rupees (%), which is the Company's functional and prlesenteniﬂn
currency. |

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevaling at the dates of the transactions. Fereign exchange gaine and losses resuliing from the
sefflement of sueh transactinns and from the lranslation at year-end exchange rates of monelary asssts
and liahilities denominated in toreign currencies are recognised in the Staternant of Profit and Lass with an
exciption of the following:- 2

Under Ind AS 21 exchange differonces arising on the franslabion/settlement of non-monetary item should
be lreated as income ar loss in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for
axieting lung tarm foreign currency nen-monalary iteams wherein the Company can continue the palicy
adopled for treatment of exchange differences arising on leng-term fareign currency monetary items
pertaining o the asquisition of a depreciable asset for items recognizad on or before March 31, 2015,

For any new lang term foreigh currency nan-monetary item recogrized from or after firet Ind Alﬁ financial
repurting pericd, deferrallamuortization of exchange difference will not he allowed, rather the COfnpany wall
apply Ind AS 21 for recognition of gains and losses.

Fair value measurement -

Fair value is the price that would be received to sall an assel or paid 1o transfer g liability in an orderly
transaction between markat participants at the measuremant date. The fair valua measurement is hased
an the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or iransfer the liability takes place either:

= Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a pnncipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal er the most advantageous market must ba accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a hability is measurad using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. |

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumslances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fajr value, maximizing the use of relevant chservable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservabie inputs, |

All assets and liabilities for which fair value iz measured or disciosed In the Financial Statements are
calegorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowast level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as g whole:; |

Lavel 1 - Quotad (unadjusted) market prices in active markels for identical assels or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techriques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurament is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valuation lechniques for which the lowsst leyel input that is significant to the fair value
measurcment 18 Unobservable

For assets and liabilities tha are recegnised in the Financial Statementz on g recurring basis, the
Company determines whether ransfers have occurred between levals In the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisalion (based on the lowest leval input that is significant to the fair value measurement az a whole)
at the end of each reparting periad

The Company's Management delermines the policles and procedures far both recurring gnd non
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unqueted financial azsets measurad
al fair value. |
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3.4

Al sach reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which arz reguired to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies, For this
gnalysic, the Management verifies tha major inputs applied in the lalest valuation by agiaelng the
infarmation in the valuation compulation to contracts and otfier relevant documents.

The managemant alsa comparas the change in the fair valug of each asset and liability 'M‘ILI relevant
exlemal sources lo determine whether the change is reasanable. [

For the purpose of fair value disdosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and li biltties on
the basis of the nature, characleristics and risks of the asset or liability and tha level of the' fair value
hierarchy as explained above |

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value ralated disclosuras are given in the
rialensant notes,

Lisclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptiong of Financial instrumeants
{inciuding those carriad at amortised cost (hote 21} and Quantitative disclosures of fair valus measuremant
higrarchy (note 22}

Revenue recognition

Revenus 12 measured gt the fair value of the consideration received of receivable. The Company
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be relisbly measured: when it iz probable that future
ceanamic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for the Company's
activilies, as described below

Toll revenue [
The: income from tall revenue from operations of the facility is acecounted on receipt basis.
Contract revenue (construction contracts) [

Contract revenue associated with the consfruction of road s recognized as revenue by refarence to the
stage of completion of the projects at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion of project is
determined by the proportion that contract cost inzurred for work performed up to the balance sheet dale
bears to the estimated total contract costs,

Coniract cost inclutdes costs that relate directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
alfributable to the construction of the tall roads, Cost that cannot be atiributed to the contract activity such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and clessified as other operating expenses.

Others
Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenus on certainty of receipt basis.

Ingome on investment s recognized based on the lerms of the investment. Income from mutual fund
schame having fixed maturity Flans Is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
invesiments. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
Sutslanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost interest
income is recorded using the Effactive Interast Rate (EIR}.

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Cempany has Toll Road Concession rights where it Designs, Builds, Finances, Dp%ratas and
Transfers (DEFOT) Infrastruciure used to provide public service for a specified period of time, These
arrangeinents may include Infrastruclure used in a public-to-privale =ervice concassian arrangernent for its
entire uscful life.

These arrangements ara accounted for based on the nature of the considerafion. The intangible assel
madsl is used fo tHe extent that the Company receives a right (& license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used whan the Company has an unconditional confractual right fc
reccive cash or anolher financial asset from ar at the direction of the grantor for the construction servicos,
When il unconditional right 1o receive cash cavers unly part of the servics, the wo madels are combined
o account separately for each samponent. If the Company performs more than ane service (e,
construction or upgrade services and operalion services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or recsivable |3 allocated by raference to the relative fair values of the services

delivercd, whan the amounts awenﬁﬁabm.
[ hgqh
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[

Intangible assets model

Intangible assels arsing out of service concession drrangemeants are accounted for as intangible assets
where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when he projects are completad,
Apart from above per the service corcession agreement the Company is abligated to pay the amount of
premium lo Mational Highways Autherity of India (NHAI}. This premium obligation has been treated s
Intangible asset given it iz paid towards getling the right to earm revenue by constructing and operating the
roeds during the concession pariod,

Hence, the tolal premium payabie lo the Grantor as per the Service Cencession Agreement is alsw
recognized as an 'Inlaéngible Asssts’ and the coresponding bligation for cormmitted pramium s
recognized as premium obligation, i

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration tranzferred to acquire assat, which iz
the fair value of consideration receved or receivable for the construction services deliverad,

Amortizatlon of concession intangible assets
The Intangible asset resogrized are amortised over the concession period on time proportion basis on
Straight Line method over the perlod of the concession.

Financial assets modal

The financial asset model appliss when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash ar another
financial assel from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amuount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, betwesn amounts raceived fram
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resulting fram application of Appandix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
Balance Sheet under the heading “Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the cencassion grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from b charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guarantead by the mncessmnrgrantnr is
recogrized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the|Intangible
assel model.

|
Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no fulure

economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the
financial asset expire. [

Maintenance obligations

Contractual ubiigat'fnns to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing costs and major
repars and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure assst in operational
condition except for any enhancement element} are recognized and measured at the best estmate of the
expondilure required to seftle the present obligation at the balance sheat date for which naxt resurfacing would
be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its present value at a pre-tax
rale that reflects current market assessments of the time valus of money and the risks specific to the
liability.

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilties are messurad at the amount expected to be recovered frem or
paid te the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used fo compute the amount ara those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries whera the Company operates and
Senerstes taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recagnized outside the Statemeht of Frofit
and Loss 1s recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in ether comprehensive income or
in aquity). Current fax tems are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction aither in other
comprahensive income ar directly in eguity Management perindically evalustes pasitions laken in the tax
relurns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulaticns arc subject to Interpretation and
establishies provisions where appropriate
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3.7

3.8

3.9

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on lemporary differences between the tax
bases of assete and liabilities and their carrying amcunis for financial reporling purposes al the reparting
date,

Delerred tax liabilities and assets are resognized for all taxable temporary differences

Defarred tax assets are recognized for unused fax losses ta the exlent that it is probable that Laxsbla profit
will be available against which the deductible temparary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax
Insses can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred (ex assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced fa the exdent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available fa aliow gl or part of the deferred
lax assel to be uliized Unrecognized deferred tax as50ls are re-assesszad at cach reparting dale and are
recugnized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxahle profitz will allow Ihe defared tax
aseat to be recovered. [

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply I'J'I the year
whan the assst iz realized or the liability 13 setled, based an tax rates (and tax laws) that Pave been
enacted or substaniively snacted at tha reporting date.

Deferred tax relating fo ilems recognized outside the Staterment of Profit snd Loss s I‘ECDQ'I‘IfZlEd oulside
the Statement of Profit and Loss {either in other comprehensive INCome or in equity). Deferred tax items
are racagnized in correlation to the underying tramsaction either in ather cemprehensive income! or directly
in equily.

Deterred tax assets and deferred tax ligbilitias are offsel if a legally enforceable right exists to sef off
current tax assets against current lax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ar producticn of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. All ofher borrowing coste are expenszed in the period in which they ocour,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connectien with the barrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences 1o the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs

|
Loases |

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement orJ a straight
line basis over the |ease tarm,

Premium Deferment [
Premium Deferral (i.e. premium payable less paid after adjusting premium defarment) is aggregi\tad under

Fremium deferred obligation in the balance sheet, T'he interest payable on the above is aggregated under
deferred premium cbligation, Interest on premium deferral is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss,

3.10 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is g possible obligation that arises from Past evants whose existence will b confirmed
by the occurrence or non-ccourrence of une or more uncertain fulure evenls beyond the contral of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it i nat probabie that an outfow of
resources will be required to sattle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in exlremely rare cases
where there 12 a liability hat cannof be recoqnised because it cannot b measured reliably, The contingent
liability is nol recognised i tha books of assounts but its existence is disclosed in lhe Financial
Stalemants, |
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311 Impairment of non-financial assets

Won-financial assets are tested for impairment whanever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may nol be recoverable An impairment loss is recogrized for the amount by which the assat's
Cairying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable emount is the higher of an |asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are groupad at the
lowest levels for which there ara separately identifiable cash inflows which ara largely indepa*-dent of the cash
inflows from othar assels or groups of assats (cash-ganerating units). Mon-financial asseis that suffered
impainment are reviewed for Fossible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

312Provisions

Provisions are recodnized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a rasult of
8 pasl evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resourcas emboedying economic benefits will he reguired to
sellle the obligalion and a reliahle cslimate can be made of tha amount of the obligation. When the
Compeny expects some or all of a provision to be rcimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
2BRaralc uyset, but only whan the rermbursement is virtially certain. The expanse relaling to a provision ig
presented in the Statemant of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If lhe effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions arg discounted using a current pra-ax rate
that rollects, when approprate, the risks specific to tha liability, When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due io the passage of time is recognized as & finance cost

.13 Employee benefits l

(it Bhort term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, inciuding non-monetary benefits that ars expected to be sthled whally
within 12 rmonths after the end of the peried in which the employees render the ralated| servics are
recognized in respect of employees' services up 1o the and of the reporting periad and are measured at
the amounts expected to he paid whan the lisbilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(i) Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave tao ite employees,

Priviiege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated porion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be Bn-cashed s provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and far the portion that is expected 1o be availed, the valuations are based on the employees' total
compensation, The liability for earmed leave i also classified as current where it is expected to be
avalled! en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current lishility are bazed on actuarial estimates.
[

{fii) Post - employment obligations |

The Company operates various post-employment schemas, Including
(&) delined benefit plans such as gratuity
(B} defined contribution.plans such as provident fund

Gratuity Obligations

Ihe Liabilily or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined senefil gratuity plans is
the present valug of the defined Benefit abligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
Value of plan assets. The defined berefit obiigation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
Using the projected unit cradit method.

Tl present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
tash wutflows by referance to markst Yields at the end of the reporiing period on government bonds
that have lerms approximating to the terms of the relatad abligation

The net interest cost Is caloulatad by applying the discount rate 1o the net balance of the defined
benefit chligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employes benefit expense
in the stalemant of profit and lass.
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Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumpltions are recognized in the period in which they ocour, dirgclly in other comprehensive
Income. They are included in retained earnings in the Stalemant of Changes in Equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined bensfit abligation resulling from plan amendments or
curaiimenls era recognized immediately in profit or lose as past zarvice cost,

Defined Contribution plans |

|
Ihe Company pays provident fund contributians to publicly administared provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have bean
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined coninbution plans and the contributi ns are
recoanized as employed benefi expense when they ere due. Frepald conlnbutions are re anized
8% an aszet to the extent that a cash refund or g reduction in the future payments is available, |

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and sash equivalents in the balance shest comprise cash gl banks and on hand and shar-term

daposits with an eriginal maturity of thrae months or less, which are subjact to an inzignificant risk of
changes in valug

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalants consist of cash and short-term
depasils, as defined above, net of vutstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash managemeant,

3,15 Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value an the date a derivative contract is entered into and arg
subseguantly re-measured to their fair value at the end of cach reparting period. |

3.16 Trade Payables [

Trade payables are obligaticns to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppiiers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilitiss if payment is due within
ane year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If nat, they are prasented as
nen-current liabilities.

Irade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measurad al amortised cost using
the effective interest methad,

317 Finaneial instruments

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability
or equily irstrument of another entity.

Financial as=ots

Initial recognition and meas urement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not reco at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable traneaction cost ta the aofj:itmn af
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial ussats that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or cenventian in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on (he
Irede date. i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or e2ll the asset, [

For purposes of subsequant Measurement, financial assets are classifiad in following -:-.magnriesl
®  af amortised cost

*  atfair value through profit or loss {FVTPL) '
= 2t fair value thraugh other comprehensive income (FYTOCH
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Financial Assets at amortised cost
Firancial assats are measured at the amortised cost if both the fallowing conditions are mat:

a} The asset is held within a business model whoze objective is to hald assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and
- by Contractual terms of the assat give rise cn specified dates to cash Mows that arc solely payments of
pnncipal and interezt (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Thiz category is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and ather receivables under financial
asscls |excep! Invesiments) are non-derivative financial assets with fived or determineble payments that
are not quoted in an active markat,

After inftial measuremeant such financial assels ara subssquently measured gt amortised cost using the
Effective Intarest Rate (EIR) method, Amertised cost is calculated by taking into account any dismunt or
pramium on acqulsition and feas or costs that are an inlegral part of the EIR The EIR amoftlzation is
nctudad in finance incemea in the Siatsment of Profit and Loss. The losses ariging fram impajrment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This cateqory generally applies to loans larrd other
recaivables

.

Flnancial Assets at Fair Value th rough Statement of Profit and Loss/Othar Comprehensive Income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured &t fair value, The Company has investment in mutual
tunde which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL The Company makes such elaction on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irevecatla.

If the: Company decides 1o classify an instrument as at FVTGCI, then all fair valus changes on the
nstrument, excluding dividends. are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income, There is no recycling
of the amounts from Cther Comprahensive Income {OCI) to tha Staternent of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may fransfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FWTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Stalement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of the Company's s:mil*r financial
assets) = primarily derecognized ({i.e. removed from the Company's balance shest) when; |

f
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ° s-through'
arrangement, and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
esset, but has ransferred control of the asset

When the Company hes transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an eszel or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement. it avaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
owmershio. When it has neither. transfarred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of {he

" assol, ner transferred contral of the asset, the Company continues 1o recoqgnize the transferred asset to the
axtent of lhe Company's continuing invalvemeant, In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
limility. The transferred asset and the associated liakility are measursed on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Impairment of financial assets |

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried al amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whather there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. [

The Cormpany has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 100's expected credit lass model;
= Lweans recelvables measured al amorised cost

* [Retentions receivable, grant receivable from NHAI
*  Louns gven to employees

The impairment methodalogy for each class of financial aszels stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measuied at amortised cost Loans recsivables at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considerad to be low rigk, and thus the impaiiment provision is determined as 12 months
expected credit nsses. |

Loans given to employees: For loans given fo employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
oelermined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initia) recognition of each and every loan
B recivabie would result in undue cost and efforl, As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credil provision will be
determined based on whether cradit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized.
Using Ihe impalrment methadology the Company has assessed that no loan loss allowance n+eds to be
recorded In the books of accounts
[

Expected credit loss ('ECL') impairment lass allowance (or reversal) recognized dunng the peried is
recopnized as income! expense in the Slatement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflectad under.
the head 'other expenses’ in the PEL. The balance sheet presantation far various financial instruments is
described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and olher contractual revenue receivables - ECL s
prasented as an allowance, ie., as an Integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balancs
sheel The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measu remont

Financizl Labiliies are classified. at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value threugh 'FSlalernant
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payablas or other payables,

Al financial liabilities ara recegnized initially at fair value.
The Company's financial liabilities include trede and other payables, loans and berrowings Fnl:ITding bank
owerdrafis and other payablas,

Subsequent measurement |

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as deseribed below:;

Leans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing luans and
borrowings are subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the FIR method However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interes! rate, ¥ear on year due to
rescl of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are racognized in Staternent of Profil and Loss
when the liabiliies are derecognized sz well as lhrough the transaction cost amartizalion process,

Retention money payable

This is |he categery most ralevant (o the Company. Retention monays are measured at Fair val initially.
Subsequently, they are measurad at amortised cost using the EIR (Effactive inlerest rate} method. Gains
and luszas are recognized in Stalemant of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized sz well as )
through the EIR amortizelion process, : o
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319

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under (he liability is discharged or caglncelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability 1= replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially
differant terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an ex ange or
modilication s treated as the de-recognition of the original ligbility and the recoanition of a new liability,
The difference in the respective carrying amaunts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and L::rss.

Offsetting of financial instruments I
Financial assets and financial ligbilities are offsst and the net amaunt is reported in the balance sheot if
there is a currently enforceanls legal right to offset the recognized ameunts and there is an intantion to
setlle 0n a nel basis, to realize the assets and satfl= the liabilities simultanaousiy.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subzequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial inatruments —principal only swaps to hedga its foreign currancy
risks. Such derivalive financial instrumerts are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
“derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair valua Derivalives are carried
a3 financial assets whan the fair value s Fositive and as financial liabilites when the fair value is negative,

Any 9ains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivativas are taken directly to Statemeant of
Profit and Loss, |

Segment information |
The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Project’ which in the context of Ind AS 108 TOperating
Segment” is considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are resfricted within India and
hence, no separate geographical gegment disclosure is considered necessary,

Critical aceounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

lhe Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are disclosed
balow.

(i} Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements |
The Cumpany has determined that Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service Concession arranggrments’ is
spplicable 1o the Company which Provides on accounting by the operalors for public-to-private service
Concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per which
the Cumpany would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer {DBFOT) basis the tall
rogds infrastructure. Aher the end of the concession arrangement, the Ceompany has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads conztructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAL, |

Accardingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per lhe sccounting policy
mentizned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under servica concessionaire arrangemeant’

(i} Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferrad tax assets relating lo carried forward tax losses i the cxlent there
are sufficient faxable temporary difforencas relating to the same (axatinn autherity against which the unusad
lax lnsses can be utilized, Howaver, the utihzation of lux lo2zes also depends on the ability of the Company
to salisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future taxable
profits and has therefore recagnized defarred tax s=ests in relation fo tax losses
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{iiijAmortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on time proportion basis on
Straight Line methad over the pariod of the concession.

(iv) Impalrment of concession intangible assets

The Company lests intangible assets and cash generating unils have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note .11 The recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit has been determined based on the greater of value-in-use and fair value less costs to sall
caiculglions These calculations require the use of assumptions regarding traffic flows, discount rates,
arowth raies and other faclors affecting operating activities of the cash generating units. T

(v} Fair valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments |

The fair value of financial instrumants that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
lechnigues. The Company vses ilg ludgments to select a variely of methods and makes assumptions that
are mainly basad on market conditions existing at each balance sheet dale. |

{vi) Provision for resurfacing obligation {major maintenance expenditura)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present chligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll reads at every five years duning the concession perod, The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expgcted future payments. The caloylations
to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the astimated timing of expenditure occurring
an the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value js determined through
reference to the nature of pravision and risk associated with the expenditure.
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Note 4 - Intangible asscts (including intangible assets under development) ¥ Millions
— Toll Collection : Intangible asscts
Particulars ikt NHAI Premium under development
Met carrying amount as at April 01, 2015 - 10,100.95 16,925.59
Year ended March 2016
Opening gross carrying amount - 11,095.81 || 18,825 60
Additions - = 5,242 55
Disposals
Closing gross carrying amount 5 11,085.81 || 23.168.14

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Upening accurmulatad amar lisation and impairment 994 87

amorlisation charge for the year & 200.40

Disposals :

Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment S 1,285.27 | = o
Net carrying amount - 9,810.55 23,168.14
Period ended March 2017

Opening gross carrying amount - 11,095.81 23,168.14
Additions 19,727.41 - 3.272.16
Disposals - 8283 19,727 .41
Closing gross carrying amount 19,727 .41 11,012 98 6,712 .89
Accumulated amortisation and impairment |

Cpening accumulated amortisation and impairment - 1,285.27 | -
amortisation charge for the year 633.67 351.42

Disposzals z

Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 633.67 1,636.69 -

Net carrying amount 18,093.74 8.376.29 6,712.88
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| T Millicns
f As at As at ( As at
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Mote 5 - Financial Assets - Current '
Mote § (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalonts
Balances with banks
- If curront accaunts 07 66 &.01 52.35
Deposils with malurity of less than three manihs 50.00 - -
Cash an hand 1070 1116 947
128.36 17.18 61.82
Note 5 (b) - Other Bank balances
Deposits with maturity of more than three months bul less than
twelve manths 35.0 23.87 =
35.01 23.87 | -
|
Note 5 (c) - Other financial assets - current |
Securily deposits D48 049 048
Interest acerued on fived deposits ; 1.25 0.67 =
Retention money receivabie fram NHA) 9392 67.66 63.85
Claims receivatble from NHA) 64,59 - | -
160.25 68,83 64,44
Note & - Other non-current assats
Capital Advance 543,80 87318 1.504 58
Sratuity Advance o e 0.03 L
643.90 873.22 1,504 58
Note 7 - Other Current assets
Advance to vendors 8583 108 &8 8323
Advance to employees 1.32 1.48 0.94
Prepaid Expenses 1029 19,73 30.30
Cuties and taxes recaivabla 10684 3.80 12517
108.09 133.88 249,64
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Note 8 - Share Capital and Other equity T Millicns
. B Nos of As at Az at As at
Particulars Sharos March 31, 2017 March 31,(2016 Aprll 1, 2015

Note 8a - Authorised Share Capital '

Al the boginning of the yedr 1,00,000 1.00 1.00 1.00

A . Increage dunng the year of “10 each - = :

Al the end of the year P 100 — | rog 100

Mote 8b - Issued, subscribed and paild-up equity

sharo capital

M Lhe kaqinning of tha year ! 10,724 0.1 (IR 8] Q.11

Add - Increase during the year of 10 each -

At the ond of the yoor 01 BT .11
— it - = LI

Hote Bc - Torms and rights attachad o equity shares
The Company has anly one claze of shares refarrad 10 a5 Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs.10/-.

Mote 8d - Reconclliation of nos of Shares

Mos of Shares at the beginning of lhe year 10,724 !1&.?24 10,724
Add - Nos of Shares issued auring the year -

Nos of Shares at the end of the year 10.724 10,724 10,724

Note 8c - Shares held by the Sponsor
Company or their subsidia rics/assoclates

Reliance Infrastructure Limited
[immeadiate and Ullimate Holding Company) 7835 7936 7,936

Jiang=u Provincial Transportation Enginesring Group Co,Ltd 2. 788 2,788 2,788
Note 8f - Details of Shareholdors holding more than 5% shares in the Project SPV

Reliance Infrastructure Limitad

Mos of Shares 7936 7,938 7936

% of holding T4% 4% 4%

Jizngsu Provincial Transpertation Engineering Sroup Co,Lid

Mos of Shares 2788 2,788 2,788

% of holding 26% 26% 26%

The Sponsor has pledged 7,935 Equity Shares for avalling varfous term loans, |

Lt  Millions
: As at LR T Asal T

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Mote 8a - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity) |

At the: beginning of the year 84,285 11 7507 81

Ineremsn I (decrease) during the Wi 250000 a77.20

Al lhe end of the year iy 10.785 11 B28517 ¢ B07.81

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by Sponsor alangwilh its Subsidiaries
i} Subardinated debt s the part of Sponsors Fquity frem the promglers of the company for the projact, which is unsccured and intercst free as per Comman

Luan Agreement with the lenders:

iy Ny repaymentrademplionfnlersst servicing allowed during the moratongm pariad of e long term project loar,

Nule b - Corporate Guaraniee {in nature of equity)

Al Lhe baginning uf the vear 105.10 10510

Increase |/ (decrease) during the year -

Atthe end of the year 10610 _ 8510 10510
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.F:a;;ulars As at As at h As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Mote 8¢ - Retained Eamings
At the beginning of lhe yaar 4. 505 57 3,486 81

MNet Profit for the Pariad {137.50) 1,019.74
ltems ot other comprehensiva in corme recogniscd |
dircctly in retained SHIMINGS

- Remaasuremens of posl-employements (2.28) (0.28) |
obligations (net of tax)

Dividends paid during the year : = -
Atthe end of the year 436582 450557 | 3466 81
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T Milligns
T A% at A5 at = ]
Particulars ; March 31, 2017 March M, 2016 April 1, 2015
Note 10 {a} - Berrowings - Non current
Securpd
Torm boans
Froem banks
Rupee ierm foan A.978 81 5,363 82 3,188 45
From financlal institutions
Rupes term Inan 173538 1.207.98 440.04
Total 6,711.93 6,571.41 362648

1] Debantures, Rupes Term Loan from Banks & Financial institutlons ‘

Al First ranking par passu charge over gl Present & fulune ron-current ragulalory assets of the CUrmpEmny.

() Laen ovef the Opashons| and maintenani: Account of PS5 I

(i} Securily mentioned under pauml s ahove shall provide o secunby cover of 1.40x ("Security Covenr™), to be maintained thunng the éntire tanor of fho facllity,
Security Cover shall be calpulabed based on the valun of Regulatory Assels recognized by Moharashira Electricily Requistary Eurqlmanun {MERGC)

(i) Pledgo by the promaters of 819 of the fully paid wp capital of the: borrower, |

(v} First Charge over Escrow Accounts & Sub Accounte accordance with Escraw & Supplymenany agrasmon,

(Vi) & 1irst ranking pan passy charge ower f assignment of the right, e, Interests, benefits, claime and demands of the Borrower In, te and undar any letier of

credll, guaranlies including contracior quarantess and liquidated damages and perdomance bend prendded by any pany to the Propect Documens,

[vil) Regayment Terrs := The repayment of lean hae started from 31 Mar 2018 in 42 Quanedy instalments and will be paid til 315 March 2028 The Interas)
will e pald menthly as per tho Bpplicabla lerest rates,

=} The Bponger Campany i provided Corporale Guaramtes far 5 in form and manner sstisfactary o the londers as par Commen Loan Agregmant

3] The applicabls interest rato for Huapee term Loan varies from 19,20 % o 13 0%

Hote 10 (k) - Borrowings - Current
Unsecured

[unsecured, repayable on demand and intrest frae)

Lear from related parties 20.00 = -
20,00 u B

Note 11 - Trade Payables

Trade Payabias AE1.70 5745 184,82

381,70 257.85 194,82
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¥ Millions
Particila ) - K5 af As af | AB at
rticsilara March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Nate 12 {a] - Other financial liabllities - current
Current Maturities of iang 1evm dobe ] - -
MNHA] Pramium Fayabin A7a.58 a17.15 558 20
Creditors for Capital expandii e 126 48 44180 529,
Employee benfite puyabia v 154 10,94 - __0an
Total 724986 1,069,390 1,187.99
Note 12 (b} - Other finaneial llabilities - Non - currant
Non - Current
WHAI Pemium Payzshin 11,784 .62 11,505 N8 11,204.5¢
Ratention money Py akie 172 58 389,04 Saf dd
Total 11,957 21 11,095.08 11,548 95
Mote 13 (a] - Provisions - Current |
Current |
Pravigion for employes honefits
- Cratuiy 4,45 & :
- Lo encashmient 044 0.2g 0.19
Tthors
- Resurtacing expenses - - (P 2
4,88 0.2 0.1
Maote 13 ib) - Provisions - Non - Current
Provision for employes banefits
- Gratuity : - - 0.00
- Leave encashment 11.48 5.95 4 61
Orhare
- Resurtacng axpensas - - . =
11.46 6.95 4.59
Note 14 - Other curment liabilities
Duties and taxes payable 6.57 737 682
B.57 7.7 .82
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= Millions

. Year ended
Particul
e March 31, 2017

-"rear ended
March 31, 2016

Note 15 - Revenue

Operating income

- Construction income 2,054.94 4.107.18
- Income from toll collections 2,120.37 2123.86
Compensation towards Toll Suspension 6500 -
' == 4,240.31 231,05
Note 16 - Other income
Interest income
- On fixed deposits 5.47 3.580
- Dthers 0.86 237
Insurance claim received 0.76 -
.88 6827
Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses .
Subcentracting gxpenses 106.07 109.89
Maintainence of Roads 33.78 £6.83
Electricity expenses . 26.09 ' 2551
Handling Charges 3.50 533
Site and other direct expenses 57.78 72,249
227 23 269 85
Note 18 - Employee benefits éxpenses
Salaries wages and honus 7311 55.00
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 4.36 3.04
Gratuity 1.45 1.14
Leave encashment 5.70 3.56
Staff welfare expenses 1.668 1.67
B5.28 B84.40
Note 19 - Finance Costs
Interast on lean 361.66 4 .88
Interest unwinding on premium deferment 668.29 -
Other finance charges 39.50 18.44
Unwinding of discount on retention money 37.93 -
1,107.36 23.32
Note 20 - Other expenses
Rent 1.86 1.65
Rates & laxes ' AT 0.40
Insurance 2229 46.21
‘Legal and Professional Charges 895.53 100.91
Expenditure toward Corporate Social respansipility 6.98 0.20
Auditors Remuneration 0.89 0.68
Travelling and Conveyance 1.78 2.74
Other miscellaneous expenses 8.08 24.65
138.55 177.43
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Note 21 - Fair value measurements
Financial Instrumants by calegory

Signficance of financial instruments T Millions
I
Particul As at As at As at
arliculars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Financial assets o |
At amortised Cost |
Security Deposits 0.49 0.49 D.49
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 1.25 0.567 -
Retention Money receivable from NHAI 83,92 67.68 63.95
Cash and Cash squivalent 128.38 - 17.18 B1.82
(ther bank balances 35,01 2387 -
Claims receivable from NHA| 654,59 -
_Total financial assets 323.62 109.87 126.25
Financial liabilities
At amortised Cost
Floating Rate Borrowings 6,739.89 6,571.41 3,626 45
Trade Payables 381.70 257.85 194 82
Retention money payatle 172.58 389.04 345,44
NHAI Premium Payable 12,363.20 12,126.20 11,862.81
Employee Benefits Payable 16.41 10.84 0.40
Creditors for capital expenditure 126.98 441.80 529.29
Total financial liabilities 19800.75 19797.25 16559.25
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Note 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a) Fair valye hierarchy - Recurring fair value measurements

¥ Millions

A5 at As at

Particula[s March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

As at

April 1, 2015

Financial assats

At Fair value through profit & luss
Mutual fund Investments - -

Total financial assets 5 ) %

Financial liabflities

Total financial liabilitics = =

{b} Fair value higrarchy - Assets and liabilltles which are measured at amortised cost for which I
fair values are disclosed

Financial assets |
Level 3 [
Grant receivable fram NHAS . a o

Taotal financial assets z o

Financial liabllities |
Level 3
Flaating Rate Barrowings 6,738 .85 B,571.41
Hetention money payable ' 172.59 389.04
MNHAI Pramium Preyabla 12 363.20 12,126.20

3626.49
345,44
11,862.81

Total financial liabilities 19275.68 19086.65

15834.74

Recognised fair valus measurements

Level 1. Laval 1 hierarchy Includes financial ingtruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual

funds are valued using the clasing NAY.

is determined using
. If all significant

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in lavel L This is the case for

barrowings, debentures, Rerention money payable and hedging derivative included in level 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
* the use of quoted market Prices or dealar quotes for similar instruments

* Iha Tair value of forward farcign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using ferward exchange ratos at tha balance sheet date

= the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

Tt
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1€) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

AL L } ¥ Mif!icﬂs_
As at As at As at
iculs
rArcalacs March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Financial assets
Carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost
Grant receivable fram NHAI - -
Total Financial assets at amortised cost - | =
Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost ‘
Grant receivable from NHA| - -
Total Fair value of financial assets at amortised cost = . -] = i
Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost
Floating rate barrowigns : 6,739.80 6,571.41 3.626.49
Retenticn money 172.59 389.04 345 .44
NHAI Premium Payable 12,363.20 12,126.20 11,862.81
19,27568 159,086.65 15,834.73
Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns 6,777.30 6,588.21 3,653.69
Retention maney 172.58 385.04 345 .44
NHAI Premium Payable 12,363.20 1212620 11,862.81
19,313.18 19,103.45 15,861.94

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on depoists, retention money receivable, insurance clam receivable,

cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits Payable and creditors for capital expenditure
approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.

Fer financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair vlalues.
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Mote 23- Concession Arrangements - Main featureos

T Millicns

Name of entity

Description of the
arrangem-ant

Significant terms of the
arrangemant

Intangible Assots

Gross book
vialu

PS Toll Road Privata Limited

Financing, design, building angd
operatian of 137 kilometre lang
six lane tell road betwesn Pune
and Satara on Matlonal Highway
4

Paricd of coneession: 2010 - 2034

Remuneration : Toll
Investment grant fram cancession
grantor ; Mil

Infrastructure relurn at the end of
concession pericd © Yas

il

Re-pricing detes : Yeary

Dasis upon whizh TE-Prcing or ra-
negoliaiion ie determined @ Inflation

Framium pavable to grantar | Yes

invesiment and renewal chligations :

March 31, 2017

30,740.39

March 31, 2018

11,0495 &1

April 01, 2016
11,005.81

Net book value

Financial Auuni—|

I
March(31, 2017

|
26,470,035

March 31, 2018

4.810.55

April 01, 2018
10,100.95

March 31,'21117

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2018

April 01, 2015
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Note 24 — Financial risk management
The company activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk,

This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the enlity is manage the risk.

Risk
Credit risk

Exposure arising
Cash and cash
equivalents, frade
receivables, financial
assets measurad at
amortised cost,
Marke! risk — interast raje Long-term borrowings
al variable

Rates
Borrowings and othar
liabilities

Liguidity risk

he company's risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team
approved by board of directors. Group treasury identifies. evaluates and hedges financial
operating units. The Management of the sompany provides written principles for ove
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instr

instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.

Commodity risk:

Measurement
Aging analysis Credit
ratings |

[

Sensitivity analysis |

Rolling cash flow
forecasts

Management
Diversification of
bank deposits,
cradit limits and
letters of credit

Actively Managad

Availability of
committed credit
lines and
borrowing facilities

(group treasury) under palicies
risk in close co-operation with the group’s
rall risk management, as well gs policies
ument and non-derivative financial

|
The company requires for implementation {construction. operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement, bitumen, steel

and other construction materials. For which, the tompany entered into fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and Q&M

Contractar so as to manage our exposure to price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis|is not required.

Market risk — interost rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resels defined under agreements. While interes

the company earn toll income which is linked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk_

t rate fluctuations carry a risk on financials,

a) Interest rate risk exposure T Millions
y As at As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Variable Rate Borrowings 6,739.89 6,571 2 3626 49
Fixed Rate Horrowings = - -
Total 6,739.39 6,571.41 3,525,4-!;
b) Sensitivity analysis I
Frofit or loss is sensitive 1o higherilowsr interest income from borrowings as a resylt of changes in interest rates,
As at Axs at As at

I to fitloss aftar t
mpact on profitiloss rlax March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Interast rates (increasea) by 1 basis paints
Inte1ost rates decrease by 1 basis points

(63.25)
53.25

(51.91)
31.41

April 1, 2015

(28.65)
28.65
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Liguidity risk

The table below analyses the company's non-gerfvative financial
roupings based on the remaining perfod ai the balanes sheet d.
in the analysis if thejr conbiactual maturities are ossential for an

liabiliies and net-settied derivative financial
ale fo the contraciual maturity date. Derivative
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

liabilities into relevant maturify
financial liabilities are included
The amounls disclosed in the

lable are the contrachual undiscountod cash fows. T Millicns
As at March 31, 2017 . Less than 3 Between 3 Between 1 year Between 2 years  Over 5 years Total
months manths and 1 and 2 years and § years
—_ — VYERF
MNon-derivatives
OWING3 - 7.90 19.75 69125 6. 118.70 6.037 £l
Trade and ather payablas 05.43 28428 as1.7o
Diher financial labilitiee - 1.422 42 1,343 M 444552 | 5,280 B 12 50857
Total nen-derivatives 95.43 1,716.60 1,362.78 8136.77 1141432 149,725.87
|
|
As at March 31, 2016 Lesa than 3 Between 3 Between 1 year Datweoun 2 yearse  Over's years Tutal
months months and 1 and 2 yoarg and & years |
_year .
Non-derivalives [
Baurrowings - - T80 414.75 | B.341.25 6,783,090
Irada and vlher payahios G4 .48 183.32 - - - 257.85
Other financhal liabilftes - - 1,925.47 147513 4,233.83 | 5,395.17 13.033.59
Tatal non-derivatives B4.46 212288 1,483,031 4,648.53 11,736.42 20,055, 35
As at April 1, 2015 Less than 3 Between 3 Betwean 1 year Between 2 years  QOvar 5 Yoars Total
months months and 1 and 2 years and & years
year
Non-derivatives
Borrowings - - - 18.30 3.810.70 3,830.00
Trade and olher payahles 48.71 146,12 . - - 184 .82
Other financial liatlities - 1.685.83 1476.72 4,217,114 5.452.30 1283600
Total non-derivatives 48.71 1,835.95 1,476.72 4.236.44 9,263.00 16,860,852
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MNote 25 - Capital risk managoement

The company ohjectives when managing capital sre to

. safeguard their ability to continue as g going concern, so that they can continue 4o provi

for other Stakeholders, and

. Maintain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital,

For the purpose of tha cormpany capital management, capital includas issued aquity capital
reserves attributabls to the equity holders of the parent. The primary chjective af the comp

sherehalder valus.

financial covenantz. Ta maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Campany may agjust the dividand payment to sharahald

e returms for é,harehullders and bencfils

» share premium, sub-debts and all other equity

any capital management is maximize the

ers, raturn capital

lo sharchoidars or issus intorest free sub-ordinate debt The =ampany monitors capital using a fizaring ratio, which is net debi divided by ratal

capital pius net debt The wempany policy is to keep optimum Gearing rafio. The compan

burrowings, trede payables, less cash and caszh equivalants.

In order to achieve this overall ohjective. the Lompany capital management, amangsl other thin
Govenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that de

ohjectives, policies or Frocesses for managing capital for year ended M

Consistent with athers in the industry, the gmﬂp meniters capital on the basis of he following gearing ratio:

fine capital structura re
arch 31, 2017 and March 31, 2015,

Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and tash equivalents)

divithed by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheat)

¥ includes within net dabt, interest bearing loans and

g8, 3ims to ensure that it meels financial
quirements. No changes were mada in the

The company strategy is to maintain a debj o Bquity ratio within 043 to 0.32 The gearing ratios at March 31, 2017 March 31, 2015 and Agril

1, 2M5 were a5 follows

S T Millions
Parti As at As at As at
ardiculars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Net debt (a) 6,611.53 6,554 23 3,564.67
Equity (b) 15,256.13 12,895 88 11,190.92
Met dobt to equity ratio {a) / {b) 0.43 .51 0.32
I
As at As at As at
PRticutary March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015
Met debt (a} 6,611.53 6,554.23 3,564 87
Equity (b) 15,256.13 12,895 88 11,188.92
Mebt debt plus Equity (c = a+h) 21 BET 66 19,450 12 14 764 59
Gearing ratia {a) / ¢ 0.30 0.34 024
Nole 26 Capital Commitments and other commitments
) Az at As at As af
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Eefimated value of cepital conlract remaining
o be exacuted for construction of toll road 533 67 2.279.84 5.638 42
539.67 2,279.85 553842
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PS Toll Read Private Limited
Motes to Financlal Statamerds |
Maote 27; Income and doferred taxzes

* Miflions
lﬂl?wim fax gxpense . - '

I March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{a) Income tax cxpensg

Cerrpnt tax

Curmant ix on prefits for e yoar - 117 6
Adjustrents lor LLETar taw af prior perlads B - . -

| Total Gurrant tax axpenso ; - 117 60
Defgyment oy

Heeroase/fincreass| in defermad Lo RS0 (181 29) {9,94)
iidecrasseyinerease in duforred tax liabikics G5B | G339 86
| Total deferied lax erpensabenafin prasn) | 247 86 |
NG o tax expense ) (17461} 365 38
Income tax expanse is attributabie (o:

Prafit from continuing eperslions [1T4.61) AL AR

Frodit From digcantinued Dperation

27[h] Reconciliation ol lax Expense and the accounling profit multiplied By India's tax rate;
: March 31, 2017 | ~March 3, 2016 | |
Prafit fram comlinuing cperalions before incomea 18 e pensn (312.11) 1,385 12

#rafit from discanlinuing aparaton before income lax expense - - |
|Tax at the Indian tax rats of 3 BDB, : noEay [ 476,35 | |
Tax effect of amourts which are nat daductibis (taxabla) in calcuigling tassbls incama;

SEC-37 amaund of any fatility of & contingent natuse -provision of Gratuity & loave |
onchaserment - 0.86

Expenses not debited to slatament of FaL and allowable for income =1 (10:24) (4.80]

SEC-37-Any otrer amont ret allowsbile unaer sechon 37-Bendce Tax Crodd - Pricr Year - 23,42

SEC=37-Aruant aFany liabiily of 8 confinganl nakire-Proyigion - 10,24

Ciher bamparany diferences . [68.77) (70.a9)

Decuclions under chaple: W1 of the Income Tee At - {180.23)

Ireiome Tan under soction 115 U8 o the book profit - 245 81

| Deductions allowabils uncer section 1M5JB - [178.11)

Lorporate social re reaponsibity expendilurs — — ___any TS

InCom: tax expense charged to statemant of Profit and Loss g (174 81 |_ 355,36

27 [c)The balance comprises temporary differences attributable 1o ; T Millions

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 204 T March 31, 2016 April 1 2018

Irfangtle assels |

Tell codection rights [1,193.31)

Premium deferarment {3,244 20y {2,394 55) |;3,495_.G3}
Intanginle assats undar development (1,158,12) (2152 41} [1,693.85)
MHAI Fremium payabie 4.077.680 3.582.25 3878 87
Other items |
Horrowings 9337 130.24) (34 0E)
Retention Money Payable 194,16 18084 19025 |
Retreman bonef obligation 34T 241 1.56
Oiher terns - {1.73) {1.73)

bial doferred tax {iabilityyasss . [1,227 63) (1403.43) — ';1;1£Erﬂ?|

7 {d) Movement in deferrod tax fiability ! asset

- Intangible assots  Intangibie assals -
- toll collection under NHAI Promium Othar iterms Tatal
Derticulars —dahts ____ devolopment
Az at April 01, 2015 - {1,692.05) 1,87c.87 156.04 {1,158 07}
Chargediierediten) chAring the yeun
b2 puodfit or loss - {456.48) 105,37 4.72 (247 88}
2 ether cornprehensive ncome - - z | 0.52 052
As at March 31, 2016 . —— 215241 398335 | 16128 {1,303.43)
T s — — o ——)
A at April 01, 2074 % (215241} 3.882.25 161.28 11,403 43)
Charged!{ eradies during the quarior
1o profi) af logs 11,193.31) 93 29 9535 | 128.02 174,51
0 clher comprehanswe income - - 118 1158

As at March 31, 2017 {1,193 39) [1.158.12) 4.077.60 251.48 [1,227.63]

g
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FE Toll Road Privato Limited
HNotos to Financial Statemuonts

Note 28 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

trangilion and Fag agusted e smeurss reporing préviously in
00 (25 ameridid) aMe oy VAL prowsans of the At (Proviai

Theradoptian of ind AS
11 preparg thase ind A5 Mnangial Shrnmeants,
Carrping valuee of lhe azsets and lighiiins i ra Finanoal S1stemerils e & the Irénsilinn date undar Ind A% ard Praviaus

HRpropiatg categury of equty) This

Nes Baer camnd out i acounlancs wi

A Exemptloans fram retraspoct v applicationg

Ired AR 107 altwes sl bmn Blopters Lertain nvemetong

PRRdB T BEBicAtOn of Ing A5

Amartization uf Infangible sssois AFsing from service
The Sompedy has used
BTAIRIArE rlabng Lw anneessan tol | sads ink

AMmphon wiwdar ind 45

B, Excepfions trom retrospectivy applicating

la}

ik

The Sompary nas eoplid the ‘cilositeg oxrnpborg troen full Muraspecive appication of lnd A5

Exlimalos

O assassTent of the gslinins made unsdier thn
oijectig evidencs that those esfimates W §
Mmpamtng dabes: rmfesling condlions Exjatmg

o

atlan and

of ransiliun in ind A5

&= ol A dade

ument of financial assats
Tha Cussdeatien of hnaninl BESRE b Lo mnasLred &t srmortised cosl o far

Tranaiion ta ind 83 - Aoconsilations

AR 101 reguras an ardfly 1o raconale aquly, casl Nows for

Effect af Ind AS adaption an he

Hnlance Shael as
Efed of Ing AS adoption o the Eaternent of Praf
Aeconciletion of 1otal equily == At March 31, 2014

. Recanciistion o latal comirehansme inogme for ihe year anded Mareh N, 2018
Mabena sdusimans to 1ho satamant of

and april 1, X5

Reconcilation of Equity as at tha date ot transdtion (Aprii 91, 2015)

e ]

Farticulars

ABEETS
Hon-turrent asaots
(8] irtangbia assptg

-l inkangite sssats wgr deveioprment

(€1 Dithar nee = caf

Current assets
8| Finanzal Assals

[ib
fivh

(1l Sah and caar squivdards

[0} Bank balsnees othar fhan
(W) Ot financial asse

b} Cumen! Taw Assets (et}

(e} OeT Cument assets

Total fssots

EQUITY AND LiagiUTiES
EQUITY
() Erpity share capital
(b Caner gouiy

LIABILIIES
Nesvclrrant labliities
|@) Frwanral Liggihes
(i Rormawinge
(i) Caner pnancil labdkies
thy Provistons
{u] Fladerred tan babiltiag Moty

Currnng [iakdities
[a) Flvancial Listilling
1) Trahlo pryabias
(i) Qlher finencig] liabiilizs
1B b carrang Fakikbog
1€ Migwisions

Total Equity and Liabiiities

*The presentabcn requirsmens. uridar
GAMP Plamation s doryed Baped o

[ =la]i]

v

[iv)

Framous GAAP Anancial slalemana,
1P R Havestvdn, asimades, el won f

CONCRESION arraigwmones
127 aid han eantinue |u adept e accuuni
BRZ R msseta recognizod in the Mnancial

hEh fioves for the year endod March 31, 2078

notg meplaine hin anLsimgnls made: by el Company in restating

Ing pakcy af Prosdmes
Hinterments

&s mandalanly mquirad undor ng AT 10

Iha prior panogs. Tha Fellzwing table rapresenis the reca

a March 31, 2016 aed Apnil 1, 2015
tand Loss for te year snded Mareh N, 20E

tn ind AR 101, Firstlimo Addaplian of Indian Accourting Standards,

Irom retraspeclive applieanon ol coertai requirsinets under ing AS The Camgany nas sfectad o bale

the Cornpany Rhas conclurad hat there is ng
equired Lrodor Ing A% bul net required widne Pravicus G

iLs Pravicus GAAR Financal Slatnments, Ircuding tha Bul-T:o Shent

e Compeny has gvaiod ceran sxempdiona and Bacaplians It accordanes with |nd AR 101, a5 explaned r-sm.| e reelling sitarence bolwaan (he
a3 gl Aprf 01, 2015
the fafcwing aptiona! wxenplinns from

GE&AP for rmamtzation far Infenoibie asects ansing from sevink SONCRBEILN

o revite e estimeing uader Ing AR, BB e 15 N

n=hiEtang o pravious Ingien GAAP 1o Lﬂ A8

AP, are made by the Company for the refevan

wAles Brsuyh oihar compratenmve Irceme & made an the basis of the facls snd cireumslances thes #0386 o iho dane

| ¥ Miiliondg
A3 &t March 31, 2018 A at April 1, 216
(End of last period presented undor previcus GAMNP) [Datu of tranition)
indisn Ganp _ind AS I AS Indlan Gasp _INIAS R
—_—  edustrmonts —fodystmenty T
981055 2R3 TR T : 10,100 55 10,100 98
16,622 45 6 54580 23,168.14 11,817 86 5,107,714 16,925 55
B3 22 - Br3.22 1,604 58 - 1,504 53
1718 - 17 18 51.02 . B1.82
2387 . 2aar - . -
68.83 - BEE3 B4, 44 - 4.4
168 - 18 51 19.75 - 19.75
12088 500 132 95 244,54 500 244,84
17 75003 16,361,15 1411118 1371390 | 15,243.58 2E,928.78
I RE] - o | - o1
1,521,068 11.37472 12, 495.7R 108817 1011454 M1
5.mem [,477 fity K571 .41 3001 | (241147 5808 40
Al BE 11,443 45 11,698 09 153 B8 11,088 .07 11 fddi a5
L] . LS 4.51 4,57
1,403 43 1,403,43 118807 1,186 07
LT @5 - 257.8K 104,87 - 164,602
45275 61715 1.088.683 &3 EA LI el 1,187 60
7.37 . 7.37 1+ . £.02
029 . .28 n1g - 015
175003 16, 361,15 111,18 1371370 1631386 hazegs
— —C

ous GAAP infomalion has bean reromed for
for the year anged 315t March, 3015

B&&u. af ragencilalion with Ind RS The regiouped Prasious

e ——
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FS Toll Road Private Limited
Moles to Financial Stalements

Note 28 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

Effect of Ind AS adoplion on the statement of profit and loss

for the year ended March 31, 2016 Note

Particulars

Revenue from aperations (i)
Lther Income
Tolal Income

Expanses
Tall Operation and Maintainence expensas {i)
Construction cost {i)
Ermployee bonefits BXpOnse. (i}
Finance cosis {7} & (i)
Amartization expense {i}
Other cxpenses (i) & (v}

Total expenszes

Profit / {loss) before tax

Tax expense
Current lax
Deferred tax chargal{eradit) ’ (ii}

Profiti{Loss} for the year

Other Comprohensive Incoma
(i} Hems that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Remeasuraments of nat defined
benelit plans - Gains / [Loss)

'{ii} Income tax relating to items that will not

be reclassified to profit or loss
Remessurements of ret defined benefit plans {ii}

Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the year

Total Comprehonsive Income /{Loss] for the year

T Millions
For the year ended March 3, 2016
Latest period presented under previous GAAP
|
Indian GAAP* Ind AS Ind AS
adjustments
Z123.85 4 107.18 B,231.05
8.2T - B.27
213013 4.107.18 6,237.32
253.18 16.68 269,85
4,026.78 402679
5278 11.65 : 54,40
- | 2332 23.32
8.80 Z81.50 200.40
1.261.83 (1.084.50) 177.43
1,576.75 q.ﬂ?ﬁ.ﬁ 4.852.20
553.39 |831.73 1,385.12
117.50 - 117.50
- 247.88 247 88
435,89 583.86 1,019.74
E {1.50) (1.50)
- {0.52) (0.52)
3 | (0.88) (0.98)
435.89 | 582.88 1,018.76
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PS5 Toll Road Private Limited
MNotes to Financial Statements

Note 28 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

Hl.

Reconciliation of total equity as on A'prrl 01, 2015

Particulars

Total equity (shareholder's funds as per Indian GAAP)
Adjustments:

Relrospective application of service concessionaire
arrangemcr iy

Premium Obligation recognised as per concessian agreement
Amcrlisation of intangible assets recogrised undar ind AS far
Premiurm )

Sub-ordinated debt in nature of cguity

Bormrowings

Tax effects on adjustments (deferred tax impact)
Total adjustments

Total equity (shareholder's funds as per Ind AS)

Particulars

Met profil or loss as per Previous GAAP {Indian GAAP)
Adjustments:

Retrospective application of service concessionaire
arrangemants

Premium Otligation recognised as Fer concession agreement

Amortisation of intangible assets recognised under Ind AS for
Premium
Borrowings
Tax effects on adjustments (deferred tax impact)
Total of Adjustment
Met profitfloss as per Ind AS

Malerial adjustments to the statement of cash flows

Particulars

Met cash flows from operating activities

Nel cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Met incre;isa.f{ciccmasaj in ¢ash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Nists As at March 31,

.- Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016

¥ Millions

As at April 01,

2016 2015
1,521.08 1,085.17
(i) !
{40.57) | {5.95)
{iv) 5.728. 44 4,568,230
(i) ' !
(1.285.27) {994.87)
| J
{v) 8,285.11 7,807.91
(i) 90.45 85.33
(ii) (1,403 43) (1,156.07)
11,374.72 1011464
12,895.78 — 11,199.82
_—
T Millions
For the year
Note endad March
31. 2018
435.89
(i) (34.62) !
{iv) 1,160.14 .
(@ (290.40)
(iii) (4.88)
(T} (247 38)
58288
1,018.76
2 Millions
For the year ended March 31, 2016
Previous GAAP Ind AS Ind AS
adjustments
619.05 1,125.30 1,744.35
(3.590.38) (1.130.69) (4.721.08)
2,926.69 i 5.38 283207
(44.64) (0.00) {44 .64)
61.82 - 61.82
17.18 . (0.00) 17.18
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Motes to Financial Statements

MNate 28 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF [ND AS
Notes to First time adoption of Ind AS

Moe (i} - Application of service concessionaire arrangament &8 par Appendix & of Ind AS 11

Appendix A of Ind AS 11 "Service Concessionaire Arangement’ is applicable to the Company which pravides guidance on aeoountng by the
operators of public-to-private servioo concession armrgements under which private seclor ontities Paricipate in the development, finenging,
operation and miantonance of intrastruciure tar provieion of publle services Tha Company = engaged in to Nesign, Dulld, Finanoe, Operata
and Transfer {26501 1) basis e toil roads nciuging operaton end maintenanee thersaf during lhe concessinn pericd. Afler the expiry of the
crncession pericd the Company I8 recured 1o handevar e infrestryctune | @ the (ol roads to the gramor e MNalional Highway Authontios of
Ineliz (MHAN

A3 per the salicnl foature of the concossion arrangerient, the cperator has a twodold achvily based an wheeh revenue |s recognized in the
financial statements which is In line with the requirement of Appendix A of Ind AS 11,

- @ vonstruetion aclvily in respect of ils obligation to design, build and linance an aseel Lhat it makes available the grantor . révenue ie
recegnized an a stage of complation tasia in accordandy with Ind A3 11 diwing the constriclion phase of the Inll roeds,

an oparaling and mainfengnce actvily in respect of the ssseis under the concessian during {he operalional : revenua is recognized |n
acuordance with Ind A% 18,

In retum of it9 activities, the Company receives congldarztion from usars of foll roads as righl i recalve fal Tow usaga-L af tall roads in
tansideration for the financing and eonstruction of the Infrastructure For which an intangible assets is recagnized in the fnafcial statements.
Alse as per the concession arangement par of the project cost is covered by an unconditional right to receiva payments from the grantor i e,
NIHAT which has been recoanized as 'Grant recelvable from MHAI under the haad financial asset and intangitia assels has been recognizod
o the extenl of unguarantaed balance, of which the amount is dependant on tha exten| of use of the inlastruciure.

hearaover Lhare has been docrease |9 Intangibla a3gets and decrease |n total equily, arsing on account of application Ufﬁemoi cancession
arrangament, of 240.57 milions a3 at March 31, 2016 and T5.95 millions as at April 1. 2015 and Increass in loss of T34.62 milllana for the year

Mz lhere h'aa_En.:ﬁ_d;_creasﬁ inintangibde assens arising oy atoount of amortisation of MHAI premium by #2080 40 millians

Mote (i} - Recagnition of dafarm:_t tax assetsilability as per Ind AS 12

Ird AS 12 raquiras an enlity to recognize deferred tax using balance shest approach, which = based an the lemporary diffarences between tha
tax base of an assed or hability and its carrying amaunt in tha linancial statements. Deferrad tax is provided an full for all tamporary differences
arising betwesn the tax bases of aeeate and labilities and their caAmying amaount in the financial statements. The Company recognizes deferrad
tax aascls for gl deduclible temporary differences Including unused tax losses caried forward to tha extent that it'is probable lhat taxabla
profits would be avaitable against which the deductinle temporary differances can be ulllizad

Under Indian CAAP defarred tax was recognizad based on income approach and deferred tax assels in case of unused tax losses cameg
forward are reeognized if there is virtyal cartainty that sufficiant fulure taxable income will be available to realize the same Hence on acoaurt of
above deferred tax assels wire not fecognized under the Indian GAAP.

Or #ecount of above there has baen Increase in deferred tax Habilities inet) resulting in decrease in Total Equity by T 1403 43 millians a5 at
March 31, 2018 and 7 1156.07 millions as at April 1. 2015 and increase in lose af T 247,36 milllens during the year endad March 31, 2016
mainky onaccount of Ind AR adiustmanis pertaining to retrospective application of service concession arangement and defarr 12 ggsat
recognized for unused lax losses carred farward as perind AS 12,

HNate fiii) - Borrowings

Ind AS 109 requiles transaction costs incurred towards origination of bomrowings to be deducted from the earrying amount gf Borrawings on
initial rgcagnifion. The same is recognized as interest as pan of the efective Interest rale methad aver the pariad af e b-urruwrp

Under indian GAAP, thase wars capitalised fo intangibée assets as per AS 16 'Bamowing cost’ as and when incurted,

On account of above there has been Increase n borrawings by £90.45 milians as ol March 37, 2018 and 795,33 millions as at March 31, 2015
with a correspending sdustment ig Intangible assels. This resuiled in incrasse in Icas by T4 58 millions for tha year anded March 31, 2016

Mate {iv) - Fromium obligation reéagnlzad upfront as per service Concessicnaire arrangament

IAE pRr he service concossion arangement, The Company is obligated 1o Pay 8n annual fiked amount of premium 1o Mationgl Highway
Auraorities of India (NHAD, The Premian Obligation has been frealed as intangible 83gat and hag baan capilalised upfrant under Ind A5 as on
the transilbon dale with a correspending impact o liabiily recognlzed uphont for premilm payabie o Mational Highway suthoriies of India

(NHAI) over the concession pariod as lhe same is paid fowards fight 1o eam revenue by constructng and aperating the roads during thea
CONGESSIon pediod

Ureler Indian GAAK the sama was ex penged out to staloment of prafl and (038 as and when i was incumed,
Or acegunt of abve thers has been incregse in total eouity by T5:78.44 millons as al March 20148 & ¥ 4568 30 milions 85 oA 018t Apuil 2015

Wote [v) Classification of subordinato debl Instruments {in nature of eauily)

[
Ind A% 32 requires classilication of finannial instnimants issued inte inancial lrbilities ar enuity. Subordinale debt Instruments issued do not
mee the definiticn of a tinancial lakdity, as the terme da nol cast 8 contractual obligatian an the the Company to make any payment af principsal
and accrued intarast hereen in cash or ofher financiai assol. Further, since the instruments are non-convertibla, the Campany I8 rof required 4o
Ratlie thi cantracts by wsuence of thei awn 2quity instrurments, |

Under Indian GAAR, these instruments wore reported as borowings.

On accourt of above Mere has baen Increase in total equity by ¥ 8285.11 millons as at March 31, 2018 and ¥ 7607 81 milions 2 at April 1,
#0135 with 3 corespending decrease in berrmowings —— o

A T

B

s
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PS5 Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 29 -Related Party Schedule

As per accounting standard Ind AS 23 as prescribed under the Companies (Accounting

Sponsor Company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Director

Kaushik Pal - (w.e.f. Dctober 1, 2015)
sudhir R Hoshing - (1l February 28, 2015)
Medan Biyani - (w.a f. March 31, 201 o)

Person having singificant influence on the Sponsor Company
Shr anil .. Ambani

Detalls of transactions and closing balance

f ¥ Millions

Particulars

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Transaclions during the year :

Tall operation and maintainence expenses (including project
execution support services)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Reimbursement of expenditure paid by
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Sub-debts received {in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Inter-corporate deposit received during the year
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Balances at the year end

Inter-corporate deposit
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Other current liahilities
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Equity share capital {excluding premium)

Reliance Infrastructurs | imited

Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co Ltd
(JPTEGCL)

39.20

1.21

2,500.00

20.00

20.00

78.58

10,785.11

0.08

0.03

44.71

E.T)T

877.20

40.80

8.285.11 7,607.91

0.08 0.08

|
0.03 0.03
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Netes to Financial Statemonta

Note 30-Gratuity and other post-employment benetit plans
a) Dofined contribtion plan

Thie fllowing amount recagaiznd B8 B0 expense in Sdalemant of profit @ less on acoounl of Provident fund 8nd Sther funds. There arg i |

other ablyations ather tan the contribuion peapable 10 the respeclive authonties, % Milfioers
E ; A3 nt - s al Azl
Farticulary March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Gontruhan te provident fund and whie funds 265 L T 1.40
Teoslal 260 " 1862 1,40

a} Defined Benetit plan
The compary has & defined benehi plan (Gratuty) for il= amployees, The gratulty plan is govemod by the Fagimnnt of Gratuity Acl, 18672, Under the Act, employes who

has compisted five: years of sarvice is athled 1 specilic lenofit. The lavel of benefits previdea depends on the morbar's lepgth of servic: and 2aiary at relineinnnt Bge.
Fueary emgloyes wiho has completad live ywears o mare of sorviog 2els a graluily on departura al 16 deve salary (sl drawn salary) for wich l::umpmm yaar ol service
it par the provison of tha Paymant of Crrtulty Act, 1972 wilh total <ailing o gueduity of Rs. 1,000,000 The said weaduity plan s fudud

The falicwing lables summaes tha The amauns recaguisad in ihe balance shoet 8nd the movemants 7 the nel unfined benatd cbligastinn :rmerﬂ'n yoar are as fobaws;

Farticulars A= at As at As at
March 31, 2047 March 34, 20148 Aprll 1, 2015

T
Opening defined bonafit liability ! (nsasts) . 208 502 267
MNat employee bunefit expanse recognised in the employes cost
Current senves cost 148 1|18 .79
Fast service cosl - K|
Irterasl cosl on Benefit oblgation 0.z i3] 024
(G3@n] £ lozsed on satlemen : 5 F
Net banefit axponsa . 210 1.55 1.02

Amaunt recorded in Other Comprehensive Incoms (DG}
Measirdmen during Ihe paniod dug io
Iteturn on plan assats, Gxcluding armounts nekdad ininloras expnsointomae) 4

Acluarial loss ¢ {gain) ansing from change in liewcial assumplions 1,04 D08 0.58
Actuarial loss ¢ (gaing arising en accoun of experionce changes - - -
Expenance {gains) flossas 2.4 1.4 0.Ts
Amaunt recognized in D) 345 148 1.33
Benefit Paid [0.43)
Closing net defined banelit lia bility I {assat) 13,18 B06 hoz
As al As at I As sl

(o [

wiadvima March 31, 2047 March M, 2016 April 1, 2015
Opening fair value of plan assets 800 502 267
Net employes benefit supense recognisad in the employes cost
Imesest Cogt on banefit obfigation 3 0,65 ﬂ|-41 027
[Gain) ! losses on salilement - 1 -
et benelit pxpense 0.65 0} 0.27

Amount recorded in Dihar Comprehensive Incomae e ]
Messurernant during Ihe Period duss o -

Return on plan agsots, axciuding amounts noiuded In interast expenssl{ineoma) (0.0 oy . 0,03
Actuarial logs ¢ {gain) arising from chango in financal aseurmnpiions :

Actuarial lose ! (gainy arising an aceoun of axpern changes

Exipeican:n (qaing ) fosaes

Assol colfng mol recannisea as an sssel

Amount recognized in Q) {0.00) onr - Q.03
Frmpioyer comribulisnspremiums gaid .43 266 164
Renofits Faig (M43 - T 47

Clasing fair value of plan assets 1 BT3 y.ue fx2
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P& Tall Road Pyt Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements

The ned Ebilty fiscosad shove ralates to funded plan Is &s foliows # Millarres
] = Asat Asal | As at
Particulars March 34, 2017 March 31, 2018, Apni 1, 2018
Present value of fundad cbligations 1318 Hg 0z
Fair valun of plen assats 8.73 gl 5.02
Amount nod recognisad &3 8n assel |asscd celing) B .
. 44 - [¥)[VE] .00
et liability is bifurcated as foliows - |
Currenl - .l x
Men-currient =5 445 g 000
Tolsl 445 - 0.01 {.0u
e o A at = A3 ot A3 al
Fanieim March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 Ageil 1, 2015
Nlacaurd rato FAE ¥.80% 7 BRY,
Expacted vl of rotum on Han dnards (paa))
Sy esoalaton rate (p oo ) T.50% T F.a0%
Irilan Azsured Lives Infian Assured | ives Indian Assuied Lives
Moraldy pro-retrermaent Mortaiity Wortality Muortality
2006-08) {Z0UE-DE) (2008-08)
A quantilalive: analysis far Signdicaml AzsUMPton i a5 shivwn bein-
Az At As at —— Ag al
Particulars Merch 31, 2147 March M, 2016 April 1, 2015
I
Assumprions Aiscount rate
Sansitivily Level 50 bp 50/bp 50 bp
Impact on defined benafit ubligation 4n % WG Basn -5.33% -4 -5.57%
impact on dadined Denefi obligation -in % docrease G.7a, A 0% 4.00%
Assumplions -Future salary incroases I
Sansilivity Leved . 50 bp 50 bp &0 bp
Impact on defined benafi ahligalion -in % Mereasa 5.87% 6.i."ph 5.99%
Impact on cefinad bensfil obligation -in % decrssse =5, 34% -5.68% SEi%

Th tabis befow shows tho axpocted cash Now profile of the benefits 10 e paid 1o the curmand mameership of the plan basad on pasl senvice of
the ermploveas as & the valuation date:

As at As at A5 at
PANiEdk March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Within the next 12 monthe {next annual reporting period) 1] 0.4 (IR
Iebewoon 2 snd 5 yoars 1.84 118 075
Bebaaon 6 and 9 yesrs 4.32 2449 1.37
For and Beyond 10 yearg 24 83 18.97 11.82
Total expected payments 31.38 22,90 14.22
The average duralion of the defined benefi glan obiligation at the end of tha reparting
pariad 11.05 years .71 yesars 11,55 years
Plan Azzets Composition
As at A% at A5 at
rleul

frkiris March 31, 2017 March 34, 2015, April 1, 2015
Non Quobed |
Insurer Managed Funs 84731 4 sog e

8.73 = Bjos 5.02
A raconciliation of Ihe asset cailing during the intervalusion poriod i given belowe: |
Cipening value of assal calling
Add . Inlerost on opaning luskince on assat celing -
Romeasuramant dis: b
Changes i surplusdeficie v = Lo

losing value of agsal coiing 2 o o
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PS5 Toll Road Private Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

Note 31- Events after reporting period

There are no subsequent event after the reporting year which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.

MNote 32 - Earning per share:

) Year ended | Year ended
Particulars , March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016
Frofit / Loss attributable to equily shareholders (Rs Millions) (&) {(137.50) 1,019.74
Weighled average number of aquity sharaes for basic and diluted eamings 10,724 10,724
per share (B)

Earnings ! {Loss) per share (Basic and diluted) (Rupees) [(A/B) (12,821.34) 95,089.64
Mominal value of equity shares (Rupees) 10.00 10.00

Note 23 - During the year management has reviewed the method of charging amaortisation in respect of the Premium
Payable to NHAI from WDV to SLM prospectively w.e.f 01st September 2015, Consequently, amortisation for the
year in respect of the same s higher by T 95.15 millions compared to the method of amortisation itherto followed,

Note 34 - Consequent upon the de-monetisation of currency notes by the Central Government, toll collection had
been suspended from November 9, 2016 to December 2, 2016 for which the company has raised claims on NHAI for
reimbursement of the expenses incurred duning this period as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement
entered into between the company and NHAI read along with NHAI circular gated November 29, 2016 and December
6, 2016 in this regard. Amount of 264.59 millions claimed, being contractually enforceable and certain of recovery has
been recognised as other operating income. As at March 31, 2017, 64.59 millions was receivable and disclosed
under Other Financials Assets — Current.

|
Note 35 - During the year, the company has received Provisional Comgletion certificate for 78.73%, { for a length of
110.73 km on LHS and 110.263 km on RHS out of 140.35 km of the stretch) and based upon the same capitalisation
for the intangible asset for that part has been made from O1st September 2016, The work in respect of the balance
part is continuing under Intangibles Under Developrnent,
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PS Toll Road Private Limited
Maotes fo Financial Statements

Noto 36 ; Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of asscts pledoed as security for current and nan-current borrowings are: T Millions
e Note | March 31, 2017 | Warch 31,2016 | April 1 3015
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash egquivalents 5a 128.36 17.18 61,82
Bank balances other than above Sb 50 23.87 =
Other Financial Assets &c 160.25 68.82 G444
Non-financial assots
Firat chargg
___ Othar Curronl Aszels / 108 09 133.68 248 84 |
\Total current assets pledged as security 43174 243,78 375.90
MNon-currznt I
Firsf eharge
intangible Assat 4 28 470,03 9,810,55 10,100.95
Intargible assats undeor devalopment 4 6,712.89 23,168.14 16,925.50
|____Other non current asszols 8 543.90 87322 | 150458
[ Total non-current assets pledged as security 35,826.82 33,851.91 28,531.11
Total assets pledged as Bacurity 36,258.53 34,095 67 28,907.04
Note 37 Statement of cash recalved and deposited during demonetisation poriod 1 Millians
Farticulars Specifisd bank Other Total
notes denomination
Closi in hand 11.2016 11.38 0.00 11
0sing cash in hand as on 08.11.204 : :
[+} Permitted raceipts 37 7R 115.84 154
{-) Permitted payments - - -
(-] Amount depositad in bank 48 16 8950 | 144
[Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 16.35| 16.35
Note 3B - Auditor Remuneration % erlinnsi
Particula Year ended Year ended
A March 31, 2017
St Fees 0.84
Certification Faes 0os
0.89
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PS Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

" : |
Previous year figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary o makes them
comparable to those for current year |

Note 39

[

As per our attached report of even date

For MKP 5 & Associates - For and on behalf of the Board
-Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Regn. No 302014E

Z-: rendra Khandal Kaushik Pal “Madan Biyani~—

' artner Director irector
Membership No. - 085025 ' DIN:05237230 IN:OE130371
Date : 14th April 2017 Date ; 14th April 2017 [

Place : Mumbaj Place | Mumbai
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